
MINUTES OF MEETING OF JUDICIARY & LAW ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE
September 6, 2017

KCAB 2ND FLOOR COUNTY BOARD COMMITTEE ROOM

Members Present: Boyd Frederick, Greg Retzlaff, Jeff Wamboldt, YIG Anna Delisi, 
YIG Morgan Kolimaga

Others Present: Chief Deputy Marc Levin, Capt. Justin Miller, Capt. Ken Weyker, Lt. 
Horace Staples, Nancy Otis, Mark Fleming

Meeting Called to Order: 6:30 p.m. by Vice-Chair Boyd Frederick

Citizen Comments:  6:30: None

Supervisor Comments: 6:31: None

Vice-Chair Comments: 6:31:  Vice-Chair Frederick commented that budget presentations will
be in October.  The meeting date may need to be changed to allow sufficient time for Committee 
Members to review the budget prior to the meeting.

Approval of the Minutes from July 5, 2017:
Motion by:  Wamboldt Seconded by:  Retzlaff Approved:  unanimously

2017 Federal Inmate/Detainee Housing Revenue Report for Second Quarter 2017 Provided to 
Committee:

6:32:  Frederick commented that we are ahead of budgeted revenue.  There were no 
questions.

2017 Country Thunder Re-Cap:
6:33:  Capt. Weyker reported attendance exceeding 35,000 each day at the event, even with 

weather conditions.  Weather kept the camping down.  Law Enforcement worked approximately 
2,500 hours and consisted of members from Kenosha Sheriff’s Department, Kenosha City Police, 
Walworth County Sheriff, UW Parkside; and Highway Departments from Kenosha and Walworth 
counties.  Total expenses, including food service, were $190,834.10.  A deposit of $198,000 was 
made so the surplus will be returned to Country Thunder.
     The total calls for service were 437: 286 citations and/or physical arrests, with 210 of these 
citations for underage drinking.  Major incidents of note are:  3 (Felony) Substantial Battery’s; 11 
Arrests of 16 and under subjects; 3 Drug related arrests; and 4 Resisting/Obstructing LE Officer.  
These numbers are down most likely due to the weather.  There were four days of rain, resulting in 
the muddiest conditions ever experienced there.  Countless vehicles were stuck and farmers were 
pulling them out for $100.  There was knee-deep water and mud by the main stage.  
     Supr. Retzlaff asked for the hourly rate charged to Country Thunder.  Weyker explained that a 
deputy overtime rate of $58/hour is used.  This rate includes the cost of benefits.  Retzlaff asked if 
the assisting agencies send in a bill and Weyker confirmed.  Retzlaff asked if Country Thunder 
disputes the rate at all and Weyker replied no.  
     Weyker continued that new in 2017 was a controlled traffic pattern for incoming traffic.  Traffic 
was routed around the west side of the property allowing Lance Dr. to remain open for emergency 
and local traffic.  Residents could obtain window placards identifying their vehicle as “local” to 
allow them past the control points on Lance Drive.  Signage provided by the Highway Department 
was great.  



     A fireworks stand is being built on Highway 12 and this is causing concern for the future.  Supr. 
Wamboldt asked if the Sheriff’s Department would talk to them.  Weyker explained that the 
establishment will not be in Kenosha County.  KSD would like to utilize more cameras in the 
future.  Wamboldt asked if a drone was used.  Weyker replied yes, however, this was also difficult 
due to the weather conditions.  Wamboldt asked if there is a holding cell on site and if debriefing is 
done.  Weyker explained that they use Twin Lakes Police Department for offender holding.  
Debriefing is done after every event.  Wamboldt asked if there are any changes planned.  Weyker 
stated that he expects no significant changes; except maybe an increased need for mutual aid.  
Retzlaff asked what would occur if costs exceed the amount of security deposit.  Weyker assured 
that Country Thunder is told that if the deposit is insufficient, they will be billed, and will pay.  
Wamboldt asked if they pay their other bills.  Weyker replied as far as he knows.  Retzlaff asked if 
any surplus could be kept in reserves.  Weyker explained that this is not part of the current 
agreement.  Retzlaff suggested this as something to consider.  Weyker added that he would also 
have to check with the budgetary committee.  
     Wamboldt asked if any charges can be made for equipment; such as radios, golf carts, etc. 
Weyker stated that this would need to be addressed in a meeting with the Sheriff.  The deposit 
amount has been increased twice to cover costs.  Frederick suggested meeting with the Sheriff after 
the budget presentations.  

Resolutions from the Kenosha County Sheriff’s Department:
1) FY2017 Law Enforcement Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) award and request to sole source 

the vendor, Seiler, for the Trimble SX10 Total Station System
Motion by:  Wamboldt Seconded by:  Retzlaff Approved:  unanimously
6:55:  Capt. Weyker presented the resolution to accept $11,804 from the JAG program.  This

is the County’s portion of a total grant of $28,509.  The funds will be used for an enhanced model 
of the Trimble Total Station system.  Some funds were already allocated in a resolution passed on 
March 21, 2017.  The Wisconsin State Patrol uses this system for GPS/digitally mapping a crime 
scene.  A 3D camera scans and computer regenerates the scene to minute detail.  It creates a video 
of the scene, including vehicle movement, to much more accurate detail.  Wamboldt asked if we 
have this system now and Weyker replied no.  Wamboldt commented as to the benefit in court.  
Retzlaff asked where the system will be kept.  Weyker responded in the Crime Scene truck.  
Wamboldt asked if we use the drone for accidents.  Weyker explained that the drone we have is 
basic and can only take real-time pictures of the scene.  Retzlaff asked if evidence, such as speed, 
can be determined by this system and Weyker affirmed.

2) Request approval to purchase one Full Body Security Scanning System for the detentions 
admission/release area funded using proceeds earned from the Sheriff’s Inmate Commissary 
Fund and to waive the competitive bidding process for this device
Motion by:  Wamboldt Seconded by:  Retzlaff Approved:  unanimously
7:02:  Capt. Miller presented the resolution to increase revenues and expenditures by 

$120,000 to purchase and install a full body security scanning system in the admission and release 
area of the PreTrial facility.  Funding will be non-levy and come from proceeds earned through the 
Sheriff’s Department Inmate Commissary program.  Waiver of the competitive bidding process for 
this device is also included in the resolution.  Frederick asked if this was in last years’ budget.  
Miller replied no.  Retzlaff asked if the system is similar to those in airports and what type of search
is done now.  YIG Delisi inquired as to necessity.  Miller explained that this system will detect as 
little as a cigarette or cocaine taped behind an ear.  The system has a 100% success rate.  Currently, 
pat searches are done.  Wamboldt asked if legally they are limited to pat searches.  Miller affirmed; 
the offender would need to go to a hospital for a body cavity search.



     Kenosha would be the third county in Wisconsin to have this machine.  There is not a lot of 
available space in the Admissions and Release area, however, the company came in and will build a
unit to our specifications.  This is better than airport scanners.  Wamboldt asked if any weapons 
have gotten into facilities with current practices.  Miller stated no weapons that he knows of. 
     Retzlaff asked what commissary funds are.  Capt. Miller reported that KSD are required to 
provide canteen to inmates/detainees.  These are the profits made from canteen purchases.  The 
money goes to a fund; and then can be used for anything that benefits the inmates/detainees.  
Wamboldt asked for confirmation that this amount of money is in the fund.  Miller replied yes.  
Nancy Otis referred them to the account statement that was with the resolution.  Retzlaff then 
commented that the fund only had $105,000.  Miller explained that money has been added since, for
a balance now of $127,000.  Chief Deputy further explained that money is added to this account 
monthly.  The unit will also be paid for on a payment plan, over two years.

Resolutions from the Kenosha County Sheriff’s Department; Division of Emergency 
Management:

1) HS-WEM/Public Private ICS/Preparedness Exercise
Motion by:  Retzlaff Seconded by:  Wamboldt Approved:  unanimously
7:11:  Lt. Staples presented the resolution to accept $2,000 from the Wisconsin Emergency 

Management Public/Private Partnership Grant.  The grant will be used towards expenses in hosting 
an Exercise on ICS/Preparedness identifying areas where the public and private sectors can work 
together refreshing their ICS skills and using their emergency plans encouraging cooperation and 
partnering in a emergency situation within our community.  Wamboldt asked if this has been done 
in the past.  Staples affirmed; yearly.  There are six counties active with this.

2) 2014 Hazard Mitigation Grant
Motion by:  Wamboldt Seconded by:  Retzlaff Approved:  unanimously
7:13:  Lt. Staples presented the resolution.  In early 2015 an agreement was made to update 

the countywide all-hazard mitigation plan leading to the recommendations for reducing natural 
hazards and selected manmade and technical hazards potentially impacting Kenosha County.  This 
update must go to the County Board and then will be distributed to all municipalities.  Retzlaff 
asked why this is needed when approval has already been given by County Board.  Frederick 
explained that this is a previously approved plan; however, amendments must go through the 
Committee and County Board as well.

Any Other Business Allowed by Law: 7:15:  None

Meeting Adjourned:                               7:15 on motion by Wamboldt; seconded by Retzlaff.

Respectfully Submitted,

Donna L. DeBree




